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1 THE MAITER OF:

LAMAR LIGHT A D POWER
100 North Second Street
Lamar. CO 81052-2505

RESI'ONDENT

)
)
)
)
)
)
)

FI 'AL ORDER

Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §22.18. of EPA's Consolidated Rules of Practice. the Consent

Agreemellt resolving this matter is hereby approved and incorporated by reference into this Final

Order. The Respondellt is hereby GRDEREI) to comply with all of the tefms of tile Settlement

Agreement. effective immediately upon receipt by Respondent of this Consent Agreement and

Final Order.

SO ORDERED TillS IztL DAY OF J\i\acJ="'T=-----., 2011.



UNITED STATES
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGIONS ZOt/MAY 12 AM 8: ~O

IN THE MATTER OF:

Lamar Light and Power
100 North Second Street
Lamar, Colorado 81052-2505,

Respondent

, I' C •
I ,_L

) ~?A REGJO~! '~fIP
) Hr ~gINr, ':1 'J:K
) COMPLAINT AND CONSENT AGREEMENT
) (SIMULTANEOUS AND COMBINED)
)

) DOCKET NO.: TSCA-08-2011-o001
)
)

COMPLAINT

This is a civil administrative action commenced and concluded under the
authority granted to the Adminjstrator of the United States Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA) by section 16 of the Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA), 15 U.S.C.
§ 2615, as properly delegated to the undersigned EPA officials. This proceeding is
subject to EPA's "Consolidated Rules ofPractice Governing the Administrative
Assessment a/Civil Penalties and the Revocation or Suspension ofPermits" (Rules of
Practice), 40 C.F.R. part 22, and this complaint and consent agreement (simultaneous
combined) is authorized by the rules 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b). The undersigned EPA
officials have been properly delegated the authority to issue this action. These general
allegations apply to the violations below.

ALLEGATIONS

I. Lamar Light and Power is a "person" within the meaning of 40 C.F.R. § 761.3
and is thus subject to regulation.

2. Lamar Light and Power (Respondent) was at all times relevant to this action, the
owner or operator of a facility located at 100 North Second Street, Lamar,
Colorado (Facility).

3. On August 18, 20 I0, Kim Le, an authorized EPA inspector, conducted an
inspection of the Facility, with the consent of Respondent, to determine
compliance with TSCA and EPA regulations relating to polychlorinated biphenyls
(PCBs), 40 C.F.R. part 761. Notices of inspection and confidentiality for the
inspection were issued to and signed by James L. Gill, a representative of
Respondent.

4. During the inspection referenced above, the inspector observed that a PCB EPA
approved mark was not present at the entrance of the PCB storage building as
required by40 C.F.R. § 761.40 (a)(IO). Review of the Facility's records for the
PCB program revealed deficiencies in the maintenance of the annual logs as



required by 40 C.F.R. § 761.180 (a)(I). The inspection further revealed that
Respondent was not conducting inspections of its PCB items located in the
storage area within 30 days as required by 40 C.F.R. § 761.65(c)(5).

COUNT!
(Marking of the PCB Storage Building)

5. During the inspection referenced above, the EPA Inspector observed that
Respondent failed to mark, as required, the entrance of the PCB storage building
with the approved PCB EPA approved mark at Respondent's facility.

6. Failure to properly mark the entrance of the PCB storage building with a PCB
EPA approved mark constitutes a violation of the PCB regulations and therefore a
violation ofTSCA. 40 C.F.R. § 761.40(a)(10).

COUNTS 2 and 3
(Failure to complete the annual document log for 2007 and 2009)

7. During the inspection referenced above, the EPA Inspector found that Respondent
failed to complete, as required, the annual document logs for the years 2007 and
2009.

8. Failure to complete the annual document log for 2007 and 2009 constitutes two
violations of the PCB regulations and therefore two violations ofTSCA
40 C.F.R. § 761. 180(a)(I).

COUNTS 4 and 5
(Failure to conduct 30-day inspections for 2007 and 2009)

9. During the inspection referenced above, the EPA Inspector observed that
Respondent failed to conduct, as required, an inspection of PCB items at least
once every 30 days for PCB Items placed in storage for disposal at Respondent's
facility for the years 2007 and 2009.

10. Failure to properly conduct 3D-day inspections on PCB items at the PCB storage
building for 2007 and 2009 constitutes two violations of the PCB regulations and
therefore two violations ofTSCA. 40 C.F.R. § 761.65(c)(5).

CONSENT AGREEMENT

II. Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations and neither admits nor denies the
factual allegations stated above.

12. Respondent waives hislher right to a hearing before any tribunal, to contest any
issue of law or fact set forth in this Complaint and Consent Agreement.
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13. This Complaint and Consent Agreement, upon incorporation into a final order,
applies to and is binding upon EPA and upon Respondent and Respondent's heirs,
successors and assigns. Any change in ownership or corporate status of
Respondent, including, but not limited to, any transfer of assets or real or personal
property, shall not alter Respondent's responsibilities under this agreement. This
complaint and consent agreement contains all terms of the settlement agreed to by
the parties.

14. Section 16 ofTSCA, IS U.S.C. § 2615, and the regulations promulgated under
section 60fTSCA, 15 U.S.c. § 2605, as amended, authorize the assessment of a
civil penalty of up to $37,500 per day of violation for each violation of TSCA. In
arriving at the amount of the penalty, EPA, as required by section 16(a)(2)(B) of
TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2615(a)(2)(b), has taken into consideration, to the extent
known at this time, the nature, circumstances, extent, and gravity of the violation,
and, with respect to Respondent, the ability to pay, effect on ability to continue to
do business, any history of prior violations, degree of culpability, and other
matters as justice may require.

15. Based on the factors listed in paragraph 14, Respondent's acknowledgement that
it is in full compliance with the requirements ofTSCA, EPA has determined that
an appropriate civil penalty to settle this action is six hundred dollars ($600).

16. Respondent consents, for the purpose of settlement, to the issuance of a final
order in this matter and agrees to pay the civil penalty cited in the foregoing
paragraph. Respondent further consents, for the purpose of settlement, to pay the
civil penalty as follows:

a. Payment is due within 30 calendar days from the date written on the final
order, issued by the Regional Judicial Officer, which adopts this Complaint
and Consent Agreement. If the due date falls on a weekend or legal Federal
holiday, the due date is the next business day. Payment must be received by
11 :00 a.m. Eastern Standard Time to be considered as received that day.

b. The payment shall be made by remitting a cashier's or certified check,
including the name and docket number of this case, for the amount, payable
to "Treasurer, United States of America," (or be paid by one of tile other
methods listed below) and sent as follows:

Regular Mail:
US Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties
Cincinnati Finance Center
PO Box 979077
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000
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Wire Transfers:
Wire transfers must be sent directly to the Federal Reserve Bank in
New York City with the following information:
Federal Reserve Bank of New York
ABA = 021030004
Account = 68010727
SWIFT address = FRNYUS33
33 Liberty Street
New York NY 10045
Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read "0 68010727
Environmental Protection Agency"

Overnight Mail:
U.S. Bank
1005 Convention Plaza
Mail Station SL-MO-C2GL
SI. Louis, MO 6310 I
Contact Natalie Pearson
314-418-4087

ACH (also known as REX or remittance express):
Automated Clearinghouse (ACH) for receiving US currency
PNC Bank
808 17th Street, NW
Washington, DC 20074
Contact - Jesse White 301-887-6548
ABA = 051036706
Transaction Code 22-checking
Environmental Protection Agency
Account 310006
CTX Format

On Line Payment
This payment option can be accessed from the information below:
www.pay.gov
Enter sfo 1.1 in the search field
Open form and complete required fields

A copy of the check, or notification that the payment has been made by one of the
other methods listed above, including proof of the date payment was made, shall be
sent to both:

Kim Le,8ENF-AT
U.S. EPA Region 8
1595 Wynkoop Street
Denver, CO 80202-1129
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And

Tina Artemis, 8RC
Regional Hearing Clerk
U.S. EPA Region 8
1595 Wynkoop Street
Denver; CO 80202-1129

c. In the event payment is not received by the specified due date, interest
accrues from the date of the final order, not the due date, at a rate
established by the Secretary of the Treasury pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717,
and will continue to accrue until payment in full is received. (That is, on the
1st latc day, 30 days of interest accrues.)

d. In addition, a handling charge of fifteen dollars ($15) shall be assessed the
61 st day from the date of the final order, and each subsequent thirty-day
period that the debt, or any portion thereof, remains unpaid. In addition, a
six percent (6%) per annum penalty shall be assessed on any unpaid
principal amount if payment is not received within 90 days of the due date
(that is, the 121 st day from the date the final order is signed). Payments are
first applied to handling charges, 6% penalty interest, and late interest; then
any balance is applied to the outstanding principal amount.

e. Respondent agrees thal the penalty shall never be claimed as a federal or
other tax deduction or credit.

SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECT (SEP)

17. Description of the SEP

a. Respondent shall perform a SEP that involves a retro fill of one or more
transformers containing PCB contaminated dielectric fluid with non-PCB
fluid. The content of PCB contained in the oil after retro fill shaH be less
than 2 parts per million (ppm) of oil volume and shall be demonstrated by
certified testing at the conclusion of the retro fill.

b. Respondent shall complete the work on the SEP no later than
120 days after receipt of the final order.

e. The total expenditure for the SEP shall be not less than Two Thollsand
Four Hundred Dollars ($2,400). Respondent shall provide EPA with
documentation of the expenditures made in connection with the SEP as
part of the SEP Completion Report.

18. Respondent hereby certifies that, as of the date of this Complaint and Consent
Agreement, it is not required to perform or develop the SEP by any federal, state
or local law or regulation; nor is Respondent required to perform or develop the
SEP by agreement, grant or as injunctive relief in this or any other case or in
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compliance with state or local requirements. Respondent further certifies that it
has not received, and is not prescntly ncgotiating to receivc, credit in any other
enforcement action for the 5EP.

19. SEP Reports

a. Rcspondent shall submit a 5EP Completion Report to EPA within thirty
(30) days following completion of the 5EP. The 5EP Completion Report
shall contain thc following infoml8tion:

(i) A detailcd dcscription of the 5EP as implemented, along with
representative photographs;

(ii) A description of any operating, implementing or performance
problems encountered and the solutions thereto;

(iii) Itemized costs, documented by copies of purchase orders and
receipts or canceled checks; and,

(iv) Certification that the 5EP has been fully implemented pursuant to
the provisions of this Consent Agreemcnt.

b. Respondent agrees that failure to submit the 5EP Completion Report shall
be deemcd a violation of this Consent Agreement and Respondent shall
become liable for stipulated penalties and late fees as set forth below.

20. Respondent agrees that EPA may inspcct the location where the 5EP is being
performed at any time in order to confirm that the 5EP is being implemented,
consistent with the representations made herein.

21. Respondent shall maintain legible copies of documentation of the underlying
research and data for any and all documents or reports submitted to EPA pursuant
to this Consent Agreement, and shall provide the documentation of any such
underlying research and data to EPA within seven (7) days of a request for such
information. In all documents or reports, including, without limitation, the 5EP
Completion Report, submitted to EPA pursuant to this Consent Agreement,
Respondent shall have its duly appointed officer sign and certify under penalty of
law that the information contained in such document or report is true, accurate,
and not misleading by signing the following statement:

J certifY LInder penalty oflaw Ihat I have examined and am fiuniliar with
the if/formalion submit/ed in Ihis docllmelll and all at/achmenls and that,
based 011 my inqui,y ofthose ;,u/ividuals immedialely responsible for
obtaining Ihe information, I believe that the iliformation is Irue, accurate,
and complele. I am aware thai there are significant penalties/or
sllbmiltingfa/.~'einfornwlion, including the possibility offines and
imprisonment.
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22. EPA acceptance ofSEP Reports.

a. Following receipt of the SEP Completion Report described above, EPA
will do onc of the following: (i) accept the SEP Completion Report;
(ii) reject the SEP Completion Report with notification to Respondent in
writing of deficiencies in the SEP Completion Report and grant
Respondent an additional thirty (30) days in which to correct any
deficiencies; or (iii) reject the SEP Completion Report and seek stipulated
penalties in accordance with the provisions herein.

b. If EPA elects to exercise option (ii) above, EPA shall permit Respondent
the opportunity to object in writing to the notification of deficiency or
disapproval within ten (10) days of receipt of such notification. EPA and
Respondent shall then have an additional thirty (30) days to reach
agreement from the receipt by EPA of Respondent's notification of
objection. If agreement cannot be reached on any such issue within this
thirty (30) day period, EPA shall provide a written statement of its
decision to Respondent which shall be final and binding upon Respondent.
Respondent agrees to comply with any requirements imposed by EPA as a
result of any such deficiency or failure to comply with the terms of this
Consent Agreement.

23. The determination of whether the SEP has been satisfactorily completed and
whether Respondent has made a good faith, timely effort to implement the SEP
shall be in the sole discretion of EPA.

24. Respondent shall submit by first class mail all notices and reports required by this
complaint and consent agreement to:

Kim Le, 8ENF-AT
U.S. EPA Region 8
1595 Wynkoop Street
Denver, CO 80202-1129

STIPULATED PENALTIES AND LATE FEES

25. In the event that Respondent fails to comply with any of the tenns or provisions
of this agreement relating to the performance of the SEP described above, and/or
to the extent that the actual expenditures for the SEP do not equal or exceed the
total SEP expenditure stated above, Respondent shall be liable for stipulated
penalties according to the provisions set forth below:

a. If the SEP has not been completed satisfactorily, Respondent shall pay a
stipulated penalty to the United States in the amount of Two Thousand
Four Hundred Dollan; ($2,400).
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b. If the SEP has been satisfactorily completed, and Respondent spent less
than the amount of money required to be spent for the project, Respondent
shall pay Two Thousand Four Hundred Dollars ($2,400) less the EPA
approved amount already expended on the SEP, to the U.S. Treasury
within thirty (30) days of written demand by EPA.

c. For failure to submit the SEP Completion Report required above,
Respondent shall pay to the U.S. Treasury, within thirty (30) days of
written demand by EPA, a stipulated penalty in the amount of Fifty
Dollars ($50) for each calendar day after the day the SEP Completion
Report was originally due until the day that the SEP Completion Report is
received by EPA.

26. Stipulated penalties for subparagraph 25(c) above shall begin to accruc on the day
after performance is due and shall continue to accrue through the final day of the
completion of the activity.

27. Respondent shall pay stipulated penalties within thirty (30) days of receipt of
written demand by EPA for such penalties. Method of payment shall be in
accordance with the provisions for payment of the civil penalty above. Interest
and late charges shall be paid as stated in the paragraph 16.

28. Nothing in this complaint and consent agreement shall relieve Respondent of the
duty to comply with TSCA and its implementing regulations.

29. Failure by Respondent to comply with any term of this complaint and consent
agreement shall constitute a breach of the consent agreement and may result in
referral of the maner to the Department of Justice for enforcement of this
agreement and such other relief as may be appropriate.

30. Nothing in this complaint and consent agreement shall be construed as a waiver
by the EPA or any other federal entity of its authority to scek costs or any
appropriate penalty associated with any collection action instituted as a result of
Respondent's failure 10 perform pursuant to the terms of this Complaint and
Consent Agreement.

31. If the undersigned is a representative of the Respondent, he/she certifies that
he/she is fully authorized to enter into the terms and conditions of this complaint
and consent agreement and to bind the parties hclshe represents to the tcrms and
conditions of this complaint and consent agreement.

32. The parties agree to submit this to the Regional Judicial Officer, with a request
that it be incorporated into a final order.

33. Each party shall bear its own costs and attorney fees in connection with this
matter.
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34. This Complaint and Consent AgTl:cment, upon incorporation into a final order by
the Regional Judicial Officer and full satisfaction by the parties, shall be a
complete and full civil settlement of the specific violations alleged in the
complaint portion of this Complaint and Consent Agreement.

UNITED STATES ENVIRO ME TAL PROTECTION AGENCY, REGION 8,

Complainant.

Date: .><S,-,-,!54 t-'.-'-ll_

Date ~ 62'<.#

Date: 5~/(

By:

By:

By:

Mi i er, Pi
David Jan' So isory Enforcement Attorney
Legal Enforcement Program

~~,
Eduardo Quintana, Senior Enforcement Attorney
Leg~l Enforcement Program (8LEP)
U.S. EPA Region 8
1595 Wynkoop Street
Denver, CO 80202-1129
Phone: (303)-312-6924
FAX: (303) 312-7519

LAMAR LIGHT AND POWER,

Respondent.

Date: 5"),] 1.2t111 By~ (2?d
PRINTED AME: IG 'c; Jz qc d ~f e I

TITLE );.(t'M~1
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned certifies that the original orthe attached COMPLAINT and
CONSENT AGREEMENT (SIMULTANEOUS AND COMBINED) and FINAL ORDER
in the molter of LAMAR L1GIIT AND POWER, DOCKET NO.: TSCA-08-2011-000J. The
documents were filed with the Rcgionall-lcaring Clerk on May 12,2011.

Further. the undersigned certifies that a true and correct copy oCthe documents were
delivered Eduardo Quintana. Enforcement Auorncy. U. S. EPA - Region 8.1595 Wynkoop
Street, Denver, CO 80202-1129. True and correct copies or the aforementioned documents
were placed in the United States mail certified/return receipt requested on May 12,2011.

Richard Rigel. Superintendent
Lamar Power and Light
100 North Second Street
Lamar. CO 81052-2505

E-mailcd to:

Elizabeth Whitsel
U. S. Environmental Protection Agency
Cincinnati Finance Center
26 W. Manin Luther King Drive (MS-0002)
Cincinnati, Ohio 45268

May 12.2011 ~t2Jt&~
Tina Artemis
Paralegal/Regional Hearing Clerk

*Pn'nfed on Recycled Paper


